ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 13, 2006
1:33 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Fred Dyson, Chair
Senator Gary Wl ken, Vice Chair
Senator Lyda Green

Senator Kim Elton

Senat or Donny O son

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 379(JUD)
"An Act relating to scheduling as a Schedule |A controlled
subst ance ganmma- hydr oxybut yri c acid and certain simlar
subst ances. "

MOVED CSHB 379(JUD) OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 299
"An Act relating to preventing unfair discrimnation against a
health care provider who is willing to neet a health insurer's
terms and conditions for participation in the insurer's plan,
policy, or <contact for health care services; anending the
definition of 'provider' as it relates to authorized collective
negoti ations by physicians affecting the rights of providers
under health benefit plans; and providing for an effective
date."

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 281
"An Act relating to interdistrict operation of public schools;
relating to enrollnment of students by school districts and
regi onal educational attendance areas; and relating to charter
school s and correspondence prograns.”

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 379
SHORT TI TLE: CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES, | NCL. ANALOGS

SENATE HES COW TTEE -1- March 13, 2006



SPONSOR( s) :

01/ 18/ 06
01/ 18/ 06
01/ 27/ 06
01/ 27/ 06
01/ 27/ 06
02/ 06/ 06
02/ 06/ 06
02/ 06/ 06
02/ 08/ 06
02/ 08/ 06
02/ 08/ 06
02/ 14/ 06
02/ 14/ 06
02/ 14/ 06
02/ 15/ 06
02/ 15/ 06

02/ 15/ 06
02/ 24/ 06
02/ 24/ 06
02/ 27/ 06
02/ 27/ 06
03/ 13/ 06

BILL: SB 299

LRLVIZIZLE TIITITIIIIIIIZIIZZIE

NN NN AN AN

REPRESENTATI VE(s) MEYER

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

JUD, FIN

JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

Heard & Held

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

Moved CSHB 379(JUD) Qut of Committee
M NUTE( JUD)

JUD RPT CS(JUD) NT 3DP 1NR

DP: W LSQN, KOIT, MCGU RE

NR: COGHI LL

FIN AT 1:30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
Moved CSHB 379(JUD) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( FI N)

FIN RPT CS(JUD) NT 9DP 1NR

DP: STOLTZE, KERTTULA, JOULE, HAWKER
VWEYHRAUCH, MOSES, HOLM FOSTER, MEYER
NR: KELLY

TRANSM TTED TO (S)

VERSI ON:  CSHB 379(JUD)

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

HES, JUD

HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

SHORT TI TLE: NONDI SCRI M NATI ON HEALTH CARE PROVI DERS

SPONSOR( s) :

02/ 14/ 06
02/ 14/ 06
02/ 22/ 06
02/ 22/ 06
02/ 22/ 06
03/ 13/ 06

BILL: SB 281

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

SENATOR(s) SEEKI NS

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
HES, L&C

HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HES)

HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

SHORT TI TLE: SCHOCL DI ST. ENROLLMENT SHARI NG CORRESPON

SPONSOR( s) :

02/ 13/ 06
02/ 13/ 06
03/ 01/ 06
03/ 01/ 06
03/ 01/ 06
03/ 03/ 06

SENATE HES COW TTEE

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

SENATOR(s) DYSON

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
HES, FIN

HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HES)

HES AT 2: 00 PM BUTROVI CH 205

- 2- March 13, 2006



03/ 03/ 06 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard
03/ 13/ 06 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

Representati ve Kevin Meyer

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HB 379.

M ke Pawl owski, Legislative A de

Staff to Representative Meyer

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded informati on on HB 379.

Chris Beheim Lab Supervisor

Al aska State Crinme Lab

5500 E Tudor Rd.

Anchor age, AK 99507-1221

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided i nformati on on HB 379.

Senat or Ral ph Seeki ns

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 299.

M ke Hogan, Executive Director

Al aska Physi ci ans and Surgeons

4120 Laurel Street, Suite 206

Anchorage, AK 99501

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded informati on on SB 299.

Brian Hove, Legislative Aide

Staff to Senator Seekins

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on SB 299 for the
sponsor.

Greg Loudon, Vice President

WIllis of Al aska

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 299.

Rose Kal amari des, Adm ni strator
Al aska Teanst er - Enpl oyer Trust

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 3- March 13, 2006



Anchor age, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 299.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R FRED DYSON called the Senate Health, Education and Socia
Services Standing Conmttee neeting to order at 1:33:15 PM
Present were Senators Gary W/Iken, Lyda Geen, Kim Elton, Donny
A son and Chair Fred Dyson.

CSHB 379(JUD) - CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES, | NCL. ANALOGS

CHAI R DYSON announced CSHB 379(JUD) to be up for discussion.
1:35:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KEVI N MEYER, sponsor of CSHB 379(JUD), said that
gama- hydr oxybut yri c acid (GHB) is oder | ess, t ast el ess,
colorless, and easy to slip into a drink; consequently it is
gaining popularity as a date rape drug. He related an incident
that occurred in the state last year in which a 16-year-old girl
died, and an 18-year-old girl was put into a coma after
overdosi ng on GHB

He said that none of the anal ogues of GHB are |listed under state
statute because it is «currently Ilisted as a category |V
controll ed substance. He said that HB 379 would correct this
oversight by elevating GHB to class one status, which has been
its status with the federal government since the year 2000. He
added that the bill would for allow the continued use of GHB in
i ndustry.

1: 37: 20 PM

CHAIR DYSON said he assuned that nost of the violations
associated with the drug would be prosecuted in state court if
this bill becones | aw.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER replied yes.

1: 37: 43 PM

M CHAEL PAW.OWSKI, staff to Representative Myer, said that the
aforenentioned overdose case was ¢tried in a federal court

because the substance was not covered under state | aw.

1: 38: 11 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- March 13, 2006



SENATOR OLSON asked why GHB should be nade a Schedule | drug
when it does not share the addictive properties of other drugs
in that category.

REPRESENTATIVE MEYER replied that the federal gover nnment
recogni zes GHB as a highly addictive drug.

1: 39: 33 PM

MR. PAW.OMSKI remarked that Alaska statute is behind federal
statute with regard to the classification of GHB because it has
only recently becone a popul ar date rape drug.

SENATOR OLSON asked himto describe the effects GHB.

MR. PAW.OWASKI responded that is it slows the heart, respiratory
system and it can cause anmesi a. He said that a very snall
gquantity of the drug creates effects simlar to that of severe
al cohol intoxication.

1: 41: 47 PM

SENATOR OLSON asked why this drug should be categorized as a
Schedule | drug when it is |less addictive than other drugs in
t hat category.

MR. PAW.OWSKI replied that the federal governnent classified GHB
as a Schedule | drug because it is dangerous and addictive, it
causes serious w thdrawal synpt ons, and has significant
potential for w despread abuse.

1:42: 06 PM

SENATOR OLSON asked how the drug causes fatalities.

MR. PAW.OWSKI replied the drug kills by causing respiratory
system failure and cardi ac arrest.

CHAIR DYSON referenced the following from naterial presented
with the bill:

When ingested these anal ogues produce effects such as

rel axation, mld euphoria, and drowsiness. Such
effects are simlar to the results of alcohol
i nt oxi cati on. They al so i ncrease I'i bi do,
suggestibility, passivity, and amesia - traits that

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- March 13, 2006



make users vulnerable to sexual assault and other
crimnal acts. On awakening from a conm, users nay
exhibit extreme conbativeness, a condition that 1is
al so observed in those addicted to GHB

1:43: 02 PM

CHRIS BEHEIM Crine Lab Supervisor, Al aska State Crine Lab, said
that state |aw does not cover two of the anal ogues of GHB. He
affirmed that the federal governnent categorized GHB as a
Schedule | drug because of its high potential for w despread
abuse and because of its addictive properti es.

SENATOR OLSON asked why netabolites of the drug clear so quickly
fromthe liver and the kidney.

MR. BEHEIM replied that question should be directed to a
t oxi col ogi st .

SENATOR OLSON asked whet her netabolites of the drug are detected
t hrough spectronetry tests.

MR. BEHEIM replied yes. He stressed that routine tests, such as
the ones conducted in a hospital, would not detect the drug or
i ts anal ogues.

1: 45: 49 PM

SENATOR ELTON asked how authorities establish whether the drug
has been used.

MR. BEHEIM replied that the state |lab could detect the drug in a
[iquid sanple. He added that is how it was identified in the
af orenenti oned overdose case.

CHAIR DYSON remarked that the lab mght one day have to equip
itself to detect the drug in blood and urine sanpl es.

SENATOR OLSON asked whether there is a |legal nedical application
of GHB.

MR. BEHEIM replied that the drug has a legitimate nedical
application that is protected under the state’'s controlled
subst ances st at ut es.

1: 49: 03 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 6- March 13, 2006



SENATOR OLSON asked whether the nedical community has expressed
its opinion on the passage of this bill.

MR. BEHEIM replied that the nmedical community has not expressed
an opinion on the bill.

1:49:31 PM

SENATOR OLSON noved to report CSHB 379(JUD) out of commttee
Wt hout objection, CSHB 379(JUD) was reported from the Senate
Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Commttee.

SB 299- NONDI SCRI M NATI ON HEALTH CARE PROVI DERS

CHAI R DYSON announced SB 299 to be up for discussion.
1:51:29 PM

CHAI R DYSON asked whether there was any objection to adopting
Version F as the working docunent. Wthout objection, it was so
or der ed.

SENATOR SEEKI NS, sponsor of SB 299, stated that this bill would
prevent insurance conpanies from discrimnating against health
care providers who neet the terns and conditions of
participation in their insurance plans, policies, or contracts
for health care services.

1: 53:18 PM

M KE HOGAN, Executive Director, Al aska Physicians and Surgeons,
said that he was avail able to answer questions on SB 299.

CHAI R DYSON asked himto summari ze his previous testinony.

MR. HOGAN responded that the passage of this bill ensures that
doctors who neet the credential and licensure requirenents for a
given health plan could not be denied admi ssion to that plan.
He added that this bill would allow Al aska residents to see
doctors who are not nmenbers of their health care plans.

CHAI R DYSON asked what it nmeans for a physician to be admtted
into a plan.

1:54: 20 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE -7- March 13, 2006



MR. HOGAN responded that typically, health plan nanagers
construct a panel of providers to establish well-rounded plans;
however, certain groups are often excluded from these panels for
vari ous reasons. This bill would allow health care
professionals to join any plan that they are qualified to join.

1:55:02 PM

SENATOR SEEKINS remarked that many provider types and services
listed in the original A version of the bill were renoved in the
F version

1:55:56 PM

SENATOR ELTON asked how the bill’s list of providers was
est abl i shed. He asked specifically why hospital based services
were renmoved fromthe F version

1: 57: 09 PM

BRI AN HOVE, staff to Senator Seekins, replied that sonme of the
provider types listed in the original version were renoved at
the request of the drafter because they were not conpatible with
definitions in existing statute. He said, for exanple, that
statute defines “health care provider” as a state |licensee that
is certified or otherw se authorized.

CHAIR DYSON call ed an at-ease from 1:58:23 PMto 1:58:45 PM

1: 59: 25 PM

SENATOR ELTON asked why hospital services were excluded fromthe
bill while rural health services remained in it.

SENATOR SEEKINS replied he excluded them at the request of
hospital managers who asserted that the bill should apply to
persons and not inani mate objects.

SENATOR ELTON remarked that the same argunent could be applied
to clinics, which are covered under the bill.

SENATOR SEEKINS replied that while that is correct, rural
clinics are generally not billed by nenbers of their staff. He
added that when he made the list he tried to acconmodate the
requests of health care providers who requested to be included
or excluded fromit.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 8- March 13, 2006



2:01:34 PM

CHAIR DYSON said the bill would be held in conmttee at the
request of the sponsor. He added that the state’s current
public health director supports the establishnent of a
conprehensive public informati on database that lists the state’s
health care providers and their track records. He said he could
i magine a circunstance in which a patient mght want to visit a
hospital with a better record of performance when given a choice
to do so.

SENATOR ELTON remarked that he appreciated the comments of the
chair and sponsor and requested they contact his office for
further discussion of the matter. He said he would |Iike to know
why long-term care facilities and rural health clinics are
included in the bill while hospitals were excl uded. He asked
why respiratory therapists were renoved while audiologists were
not .

SENATOR SEEKINS replied that respiratory therapists were
excluded from the |ist because they do not fit the statutory
definition of “health care providers.”

2:04: 34 PM

SENATOR GREEN asked why certain doctors are granted nenbership
in health <care plans while other qualified doctors were
excl uded.

MR. HOGAN replied that many physicians join major health care
pl ans because they cover so nmany potential patients. He added
that the bill would confer an advantage to physicians because
patients covered under nmajor providers would not be penalized
for seeing them

2:07:40 PM
SENATOR CGREEN asked him whether physicians currently covered
under insurance plans pay |less than 100 percent of the regular

cost of insurance.

MR. HOGAN replied that in Alaska they typically pay 90 to 95
percent of the regular cost.

SENATOR GREEN asserted that insurance conpanies offer a discount
to certain physicians to attract a greater volume of custoners.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -9- March 13, 2006



MR. HOGAN replied that is correct in the case of Blue Cross. He
commented that Alaska is woefully short of physicians and that
insurance plans further limt the access of many patients to
their preferred practitioners.

2:09: 41 PM

SENATOR GREEN remarked that the passage of this bill would
dimnish the revenue of insurance providers because they would
have to offer their discounts to every qualified physician that
requests nenbership.

MR. HOGAN acknow edged the concern and remarked that the bill
was drafted in the interest of making doctors nore accessible to
patients and inproving the continuity of care for patients when
they change their health care plans. He referenced a letter
from the Kentucky Environmental and Public Protection Cabinet
that indicated it had a simlar |aw on the books for a while and
couldn’t find any long-terminpacts on the anmount enployers paid
for prem uns.

2:12: 15 PM

SENATOR W LKEN stated his concern over letters from AETNA and
Beach Street Corporation that speak markedly to the fact that
this legislation will increase the cost of insurance across the
state. He added that the Federal Trade Conmi ssion (FTC) stated
in a July 2004 report that they are against any wlling provider
| egi sl ation. He asked M. Hove to consider how the Departnent
of Justice and FTC would respond to this |legislation per the
remarks in the aforenentioned letters.

MR. HOGAN replied that he did not have the report or the letters
before himand could not offer an opinion at the present tine.

SENATOR W LKEN suggested that he review the report and the
letter and consider how this legislation may run contrary to
what the FTC, AETNA, and Beach Street Corporation are
suggesti ng.

2:14: 28 PM
SENATOR OLSON stated for the record that he is a |icensed

nmedi cal physician and is not on any preferred nedical provider
list.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 10- March 13, 2006



CHAI R DYSON stated for the record that his retired wife's forner
profession is listed in the bill.

2:15:23 PM

TOM BRICE, Al aska District Council of Laborers, Laborer’s Loca
942, Local 341, and Public Enployees Local 71, opposed SB 299.
He said that the organizations he represents believe that the
legislation will hinder their ability to procure the best health
care arrangenents for their enployees. He said these
organi zations are currently able to negotiate favorable
arrangenents with health care providers by offering them the

patronage of their nenbers. He said that if this bill passes
the organi zations will |ose the power to negotiate and the cost
of their health care will increase.

2:18:16 PM

SENATOR GREEN asked what would be the eventual outcone if all of
the practitioners qualified to beconme preferred providers
actual ly becane preferred providers.

MR BRICE replied that there would ultimtely be no preferred
provi der status because no organization could offer custoner
vol unme in exchange for |ower rates.

2:21:33 PM

GREG LOUDEN, Vice President, WIlis of Al aska, said that Senator
Green expressed many his organi zation’s concerns about the bill.
He said that the bill would limt the value of many current
contracts. He added that in fiscal year 2004, [Indiscernible
2:22:51 to 2:22:54] estimated that changing from a directed
preferred provider organization (PPO to an open PPO was going
to save $1.5 million per year for the state. In the last year
the estimate was not a dollar figure but four percent of the
gross cost, which cones out to alnpbst the exact sanme anount,
$1.5 million per year.

2:23:50 PM

ROSE KALAMARI DES, Adm nistrator, Alaska Teanster-Health Pl an,
said that this bill was introduced under the preface that
individuals buy their own health care. However, of the $5
billion spent on health care in Al aska l|ast year, only five
percent was paid on individual policies.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -11- March 13, 2006



She said that Al aska has the highest cost of health care in the
nation and added that spending on health care in the state is
expected to increase at the rate of approximately 9 percent a
year.

M5. KALAMARIDES said this legislation would inpact enployers
directly and negatively because they would not |onger be able to
of fer custoner volunme in exchange for discounts. Consequent |y,
their already large health care costs would increase and they
woul d undoubtedly transfer sone of the new costs to their
enpl oyees.

She said this type of legislation has been popular in states
wi th nmanaged health care. However, there is virtually no managed
care in Alaska and therefore the scare tactics offered by the
proponents of this legislation are a snoke screen. She said
this legislation is intended for the benefit of doctors and
not hi ng nore.

MS. KALAMARIDES said that according to recent |-Search study,
medi cal and surgical procedures in Al aska cost 18 percent nore
than el sewhere in the United States. Doctors in Al aska are paid
well and do not have to contend with HMXs. She said that
regulating this industry through anti-conpete |egislation my
have nmade sense when we were living in an econony with heavily
regul ated industries, but today it only serves the interest of
doctors. She urged the commttee not to pass SB 299.

2:28:31 PM
CHAI R DYSON held SB 299 in comm ttee.

SB 281- SCHOOL DI ST. ENRCLLMENT SHARI NG CORRESPON

2:28: 50 PM
CHAI R DYSON announced SB 281 to be up for discussion.
2:29:33 PM
CHAIR DYSON noved to adopt the proposed conmttee substitute
Version | as the working docunent. He objected for discussion
pur poses of discussion. He said:

The |-version says that an enrolling school district

will receive the same anmpbunt of state revenue as the
school district of residence would have received had

SENATE HES COW TTEE -12- March 13, 2006



the student enrolled in his home district, but only if
the enrolling district has a contract wth the
district of residence. It specifies that the district
of residence is to provide the educational facility
and the routine nentoring and supervision - it is
called daycare here - of the student, and student
behavi or responsibilities and if not, the student wll
be funded at the same [level] as a correspondence
student at 80 percent of the funding with no all owance
for district cost factors.

2:31:11 PM

CHAI R DYSON renoved his objection and asked whether there was
any objection to adopting Version |I. Wthout objection, Version
| was adopted and the chair announced that SB 281 would be held
over.

CHAI R DYSON adjourned the Senate Health, Education and Social
Services Standing Commttee neeting at 2:31:36 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 13- March 13, 2006



